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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Delhi Duty Free Services Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash
Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2021, and its loss, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

Attention is invited to Note 38 of the Financial Statements, which sets out the Management'’s
assessment of the financial impact on account of COVID19 pandemic situation including the
related uncertainties. Based on these assessments, the Management has concluded that the
Company will be able to meet all of its obligations as well as recover the carrying amount of
its assets as at March 31, 2021.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report including Annexures to
Directors’ Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process,

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safequards.

(KV\
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As
a)

b)

<)

d)

e)

f)

9)

h)

iii.

required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best o
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration (i.e. sitting fees) paid by the Company to its directors
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements — Refer note 27 to the financial statements;

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order/ the CARO 2016™)
issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in
"Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)
.

e Wkl
Pramod B. Shukla
Partner
(Membership No. 104337)

UDIN: 21104337AAAABI5568

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 6, 2021
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ANNEXURE “A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date on the Financial Statements for the
year ended March 31, 2021 of Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Delhi Duty Free
Services Private Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“"Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies

(™
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and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial
reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repoiting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm‘s Registration No. 117366W/W-10_Q_(_J_18)

YLAMOL/ | e
Pramod B. Shukla
Partner

(Membership No. 104337)
UDIN: 21104337AAAABI5568

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 6, 2021
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ANNEXURE “B"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Reports on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,
2021 of Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited)

(0

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

In respect of its Property, plant and equipment

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of the Property, plant and equipment.

b.  The Company has a programme of verification of Property, plant and equipment
to cover all the items of Property, plant and equipment every 2 years, which, in
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its Property, plant and equipment. As per the aforesaid programme, the
management has not performed physical verification of Property, plant and
equipment during the year as the same was carried out in the previous year.

(o The Company does not have any immovable properties of freehold or leasehold
land and building hence reporting under clause (i)(c) of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2016 (“the CARO 2016") is not applicable.

The inventories were physically verified during the year by the management at
reasonable intervals. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventories as
compared to book records were not material and have been properly dealt with in the
books of account.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees
and securities and hence reporting under clause (iv) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. The Company does not
have any unclaimed deposits and accordingly the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in respect of statutory dues:

a. The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Employee’s State Insurance, Income tax, Customs Duty,
Goods and Services Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to
the appropriate authorities.

b. There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employee’s
State Insurance, Income tax, Customs Duty, Goods and Services Tax, cess and other
material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.
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(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

€. There are no dues of Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise duty and Value
Added Tax as on March 31, 2021 on account of disputes. Details of dues of Income
tax which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2021 on account of disputes are

given below:
| Name of | Nature of | Forum where | Period to | Amount Amouﬁ
Statute Dues Dispute is | which the | involved | unpaid
| Pending Amount (Rs. in | (Rs. in
L Relates Crores)* | Crores)*
| Income  Tax | Dividend Commissioner | FY 2017-18 | 0.00 0.00
Act, 1961 distribution | of Income Tax
tax Appeal

Income  Tax | Income tax | Commissioner | FY 2017-18 | 1.24 1.24
Act, 1961 of Income Tax

Appeal ]

*0.00 implies value less than Rs 100,000

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to bank. The
Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial institutions and
government and not issued any debentures during the year.

The term loans have been applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for
which they were raised other than temporary deployment pending application of
proceeds. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments).

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid/provided managerial remuneration (i.e. sitting fees) in accordance
with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013,

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
CARO 2016 is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly cenvertible debentures and hence reporting under
clause (xiv) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable to the Company

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors
or persons connected with him and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable,




Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934,

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W 100018)

i

Pramod B. Shukla

Partner

(Membership No. 104337)
UDIN: 21104337AAAABJI5568

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 6, 2021



Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : US2599DL2009P1TC 191963)

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise statcd)

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Capilal work-in-progress
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Financial assets

(i) Loans

(i1) Others - financial asscls
Deferred tax assets (net)
Income tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets
(i) Loans
(ii) Trade receivables
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Bank balance other than (iii) abuve
(v) Othcr financial assets

Other current assets

Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital

Other equity

Total equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease Liabilities
(i) Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
{i} Borrowings
(ii) Trade payables

(a) Total outstanding ducs of micio cnierprises and small cntcipuses
(b) Tolal outstanding dues ol cieditors other than micio enterprises and small enterprises

(iii} Lease liabilitics

(iv) Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Current tax liabilities (net)
Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Summary of significant accounting policies

See accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Dcloitte Haskins & Sclls LLP
Chartered Accountants

{:w/b@ CL\E__' .

Pramod B. Shukla
Partner

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 06, 2021

o

Nutes As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
3 38.34 49.97
3 0.73 122
34 97.84 2041
4 64.77 82.41
SA 166.54 149.72
3B 0.73 0.65
16 19.60 10.26
2.10 1.76
[ 0.71 4.57
391.36 320.97
7 102.81 211.64
SA 0.99 091
8 12,55 6.54
8A 0.43 0.42
SB 27.68 116.04
6 5.12 7.15
149.58 342.70
540.94 663.67
9 80.00 80.00
10 249.67 288.87
329.67 368.87
1] 9.01 16.47
34 80.69 16.36
13 - 392
s 5.84 6.68
95.54 4343
11 11.27 24 66
12

0.99 1.76
60.62 179.27
34 19.19 6.40
13 15.05 29.82
14 6.03 6.65
15 0.79 1.02
1.79 1.79

115.73 251.37

540.94 663.67

2.2

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Delhi Duty Free Services P'riyate Limited

Dircefor
DIN
Place: Mew Delhi

/< ﬂee 88/"/ \ g
2 : New Delhi

.';" ,f ‘-"_ , Dyle: May 06, 2021

ID'\ New Delh,t"

".-’

Ixeeutive officer

Dirttor

DIN

Place: New Dclhi
Date: May 06, 2021

:f Financlal officer
New Dclhi
Date: May 06, 2021

Comgany Seeretury
Mace: New Delhi
Dlate: May (6, 2021



IL.

IIr.

Iv.

VI

Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : U52599DL2009PTC191963)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

Notes

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

INCOME

Revenue from operations 17 272.23 1,414.59

Other income 18 35.61 19.41

Total Income (I + 11) 307.84 1.434.00

EXPENSES

Purchases of stock-in-trade (net of returns Rs. 31.86 Crores, Previous Year Rs. Nil) 1.00 518.49

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 19 108.83 (15.19)

Employee benefits expense 20 28.48 43.22

Depreciation and amortization expense 21 43.37 36.79

Finance costs 22 9.68 9.83

Concession Fees 23 100.61 525.69

Other expenses 23 55.45 119.15

Total expenses 347.42 1,237.98

Profit/ (Loss) before tax (I11-1V) (39.58) 196.02

Tax expense:

Current Tax 16 = 53.11

Deferred Tax 16 (9.44) 1.55
VII Profit/ (Loss) for the year (V-VI) (30.14) 141.36
VII Other comprehensive income (OCI)

A [tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans 0.38 (0.54)

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit and

loss (0.10) 0.14

Total other comprehensive income 0.28 (0.40)
IX. Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+V11]) (29.86) 140.96

Eamnings/ (Loss) per share (face value Rs. 10 per share): 24

(1) Basic (in Rs.) 3.77) 17.67

(2) Diluted (in Rs.) .77 17.67

Summary of significant accounting policics 2.2

Sce accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Staternents

As per our report of even date attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

o
Pramod B. Shukla
Partner

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 06, 2021

_Date: May l‘Jr-_-.IZ 121

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

(N
Direcﬁ 1\}-9“
DIN

Place: New Declhi
Date: May 06, 2021

Plave: New Delhj

Date: May 06, 2021

ctor
DIN
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 06, 2021

/

Compuny Secretary
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 06, 2021



Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : US2599D1,20091 1 C191963)
Statement of Cush Flows for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

A Cash flow from operating ;:-tTvilius o

Profit/ (Loss) before tax (39.58) 196.02
AdJustment to reconclle profit belore v to net cash Moy
Depreciation and amortization expense 43.37 3679
Net (gain) / loss on sale / discard ol Property, Plant and Equpment metuding CWIP 0.49 0.01)
Unwinding ol discounts on sccurity depasits given (16.97) (1528)
Unrealized Foreign exchange (gain) / loss (net) (0.82) 0.67
Gain on hedged ilem reclassified o profit or loss account finni cash loss hedge reserve (LL71) .
Interest income (0.17) (0.99)
Finance costs 9.68 9.83
Provision for bad and doubtful 1eceivables (net) 028 (0.02)
Liability no lenger required written back (0.22) -
Provision for stock loss 3.33 0.62
Lease liability writlen back (6.33) (.17
2093 30.44
Operating profit before working capital changes (18.65) 126.46
Movements in working capital;
{Increase) in inventorics 105.50 (15.81)
(Increase)/decrease in [inancial/non-linancial assels 14.68 (49.64)
Inercase/(decrease) in trade payables and other (inancia! non linaneial liabilities (45.71) 78.40
Increase in provisions 10.79) .48
73.68 13.44
Cash generated from operatlons 55.03 239.89
Less: Direct lax paid (net of refinds) (0.35) {54.75)
Net cash flow from operating aclivitics (A) 54.68 185.14
B Cash flow from investing activitics:
Capital expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment it adyusiment of increase/decrease n capital work-in-
progress and advances for capital expenditue) (1.19) (10.21)
Proceeds (rom sale of property, plant and cquipment = 0.07
Interest received 0.12 1.19
Bank balances (including non-curnent) nut considered s cinh anid cosh equivalent (net) (.01} 0.15
Net cash flow used In investing activitics (B) (1.08) (8.80)
C Net cash flow from financing aclivities:
Finance costs paid (6.32) (9.73)
lnterim dividend paid on equity shases (including tax on dn dend) : (86.80)
Final dividend paid on equity shares (including iy on divadendy - (19.29)
Repayment of lease liability (6.50) (6.96)
Repayment of long term borrowings (23.15) (33.18)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 1.77 7.49
Net Increase/ (decrease) in short-le:m borowings (13.39) (41.34)
Net cash flow used in in financing activities ( C ) (47.59) (189.81)
Net (decrease )/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ () 6.01 (13.47)
Cash and cash cquivalents at beginning af the yeat 6.54 20.01
Cash and cash ecquivalents at ¢nd ol the yeu 12.55 6.54
As at As at
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENIS March, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balances with banks:
- In current accounts 1.10 1.60
- in EEFC accounts 9.95 3.07
Cash in hand 1.50 |.87
Total cash and cash cquivalen(s 12.55 6.54

Note:
The above Stalement of Cash Flow has been prepaicd under the lndicet Vethod' as sci out in the Ind AS- " on Statements of Cash Flow

See accompanying notes forming pait of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on hehall of the Board of Directors of
el Pty Froe Serviees Private Limi

Pramod B. Shukla
Partner
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Place: New Delly
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Dale: May 06, 2021

(}W‘

el Financial officer
Plake: New Delhi
Date: May 06, 2021

Y \\U’ \ /
[ 2 Mow DeIhiJ;UJ
\ \ o+
N ZN Ayl

Campugy Secretary
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 06, 2021



1202 90 e} :a1eQ@
JaQ MR 298| d
A1vyaadag Aledune y

-

1T0T "90 AV :932Q
1loq Moy 1998ld
JadYJ0 R

1TOC v N
1|2 MaN :09e|d
Na

4013341Q

PONWI] WAL $A0[ ALk 244 K RQ
§0 SLO1I2IL S0 DILOG UL O LIEYIQ HO pUY L0 |

yiag Man

\

1202 *90 AT 1918
wemnng 1298

Jouurg
epinyg g poweld

QN 7

SIUBILNGIDY DI 1EYD)
QW SERYSER 200G 1008

TR sy

= fperd NB'S 1Z0Z 1§ YTy LT ST adeney
— - - - AIEOIUL dAsrAza Ll
DUVl
Ll A0 Uk 3goad o1 pa.
34
(£1°0¢) it | 0Y) way oy
LYROE LRRET (£ T wwe T e o ATOT ey
N Feh g3t 1R INELT = e - =H DTOT “LE §OLEL 6 SE adueeg
K Iy = List = DWOE I visudydsdwend [rio g
o) ot q) SO MNISUIYAIGLIOD JIUI()
s s (89 Spal Jo UOUIUFOIIL UO $S0| Jy LI UO NEI PALIAYP JO [C8113Y
(60°901) (60'901) (60 901) (XT} UO[INQUISTP PUSPIAIP AULPN|dUT) PUapLAIQ
EIFl 9t It 9< 1¥1 124 1105 noLg
T RLE WAL i RS 11 [CTa TS hEL W IS 6107 'L [HAY Je s Adue[eg
K.H—-_E_n_- 1! i
AAIISA Japun paqqn)d sueld Jausq pauyIp
a8y 23pay uons|sues £502.14nd udaio] uo (sas60])/sUIRS SHuILAINSAOUIIY sRujuIRd paure)dY L35 [BLIUID |jsnde?) panssy
Aunb3 1A B0 120 Jo sway| sn[duns pue sIALISIY

(P3IE)5 ASIMIAY0 §SIJTN *3104D $33dNY UT Junowy)
1Z0Z ‘L€ YD4BA P2PUD 184 I3 J0] Aunb3 uj soFuey)) Jo JLIWNTIS
(€96 T161D.Ld600TTAG6SISN * NTD) PRI 3)BALIJ 63DIAIDG 3214 Aynq mdg



a)

b)

Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : US2599DL2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the ycar ended March 31, 2021
(Amount In Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

Corporate Information

Delhl Duty Free Services Private Limited ("the Company") is dormicilcd in India and Is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable In [ndla. The Company is a joint
venture between Delhi International Airport Limited, Yalorvin Linuted and GMR Airports Limited and 1s primarily engaged in the business of operating duty free shops at international
airport in Delhi. The Company was awarded the license to nanag: and operate the Duty Free Shops at Terminal-3, Indira Gandhi International Airport in Delhi by Deihi International
Airport Limited. The registered office of the Company 15 located at Building Mo 301, Ground Floor, Opp Terminal-3, Indira Gandhi International Airport, New Delhi-110037

The Financlal Statements were approved foi 1ssue by the Company’s noard o” directors on May 06, 2021

Slanlificant accountina policles

Basis of preparation

(i) The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and otner accounting principles generally accepted In Indla. The accounting policies followed In preparation of the

Financial Statements are consistent with those followed in the preparztion of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020.

(i) The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain instruments that have been measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period. (as
explained in accounting policy regarding financial instruments)

(i) The Financlal Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (*INR } and all the values are rounded to the nearest Crore (INR 00,00,000), except when otherwlse Indlcated.

y of signifi ing policies

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at histoiical cost less accumulated depreciation/amortization and impairment loss, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Capital work in progress includes cost of property. plant and equiprment under installation/under development as at the balance sheet date.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount ur recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be ireasured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate assets are derecognized when
replaced. Further, when each major inspection 1s performed, its cust is recognized in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from Its use or
disposal. Any galn or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) Is Included in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized

The residual values, useful lives and methods of aepreciation/amaortizauion of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each period end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

Depreciation/Amortization on Property, plant and equipment

(i) Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment has been provided an o pro-rata basis to the period of use under the straight line method over the estimated useful lives of each
asset as determined by the management In zccordance vatl. Fart A of Schedule 11 of the Compamies Act, 2013, in respect of following assets , the company, based on technical
evaluation, believes that the useful life of such assets s differ:nt fioin the useful life specified in Schedule 1I to The Companies Act 2013 and adopted the useful life of such assets

accordingly.

Categories Uscful Lite (SI.M) Useful life as per Scheduie 11 of the Companies Act, 2013
Office equipment 3ycos 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 years 10 years

Plant and machlnery 5 years 15 years

Vehicles 5 years 8 years

Server 3 years 6 years

Computers 3 years 3 years

(ii) Leasehold improvements are amortized over tine primaiy penioc of the Izase or economic useful life of 10 years, whichever is lower.

(iii) Assets costing indlvidually Rs. 5,000 or !=ss aie depreciated full, n the period of capltalization
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9)

Dalhl Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN ¢ US2599DL2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the your led March 31, 2041
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately aie measured on initial 1ecognitior. at cost

Following initial recognition, intangible assels are carried al cust less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangibles,
excluding capitalized development costs, arc not capitalized and lne related expenditure is reflocted in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the expenditure is
incurred,

License represents right to run and opcrate duty free shops and (epicsants time value of security deposlt amount paid to Delhl International Alrport Limited in accordance with terms
of concession arrangement.

Amortization of intangibles - Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses, if any, Amortization is recognized on a straight-line hasis over their estimated useful lives The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in astimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any

Computer Software are amortized on straight line basis over the estimated useful life of 3 years

Inventory
Stock-in-trade - Traded goods are valucd at lower of cost and nel realizable value. Cost (Other than Goods-in-transit) is determined on a moving weighted average basis and
includes all applicable costs incurred in bringing goods to then niisent location and condition.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, constiiictiun o productien of qualifying assets, that necessarlly takes a substantial perlod of time to get ready for Its Intended
use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset

All other borrowing costs are expensed n the period in which they ccour

Borrowing costs consist of Interest and other costs thal an cauty micur= in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also Includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing ¢ost

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there 13 an whication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset
is required, the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amuunl An asset's recoverable amouril is the higher of an asset's or cash generating units’ (CGUs}) net selling price and
its value in use. The recoverable amount 1s datermined for an iadividual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or Company of assets. When the carrying amount of &p asset o1 CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset Is consldered impaired and Is written down to Its recoverable
amount.

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to delerinine whether there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU's recocverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a
change In the assumptions used to determine the asset’s 1ccoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is Ilmited so that the carrying amount of
the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the Statemient of Profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as
a revaluation increase.

Provisions, Contingent liabilities, Contingent assets, and Coimmmitments

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a picsent obligat:on (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to scttle the obligation and a rehable =stimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision
to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the renmbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement Is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented n the Statement of £ ofit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the pa sage of ime is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent llabllity Is disclosed in the case of
« A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not p obable that an outflow of resources will not be required to settle the obligation

« A present obligation arising from past avents, when no relioble estirnale is possible
A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the prenability of outflow of resources Is remote

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unewpecter cvents that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of economic benefits to the entity. A contingent asset is
disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of adh.nces) 1ssued to parties for completion of assets

Provlslons, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitie nts e reviewed at each balance sheet date

i
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Delhl Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : US2599DL2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financlal Statements for the ycar ended March 31, 2021

Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payablefavailable within twalve months of rend=rng the service are classified as short-term employee benefits, Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus
etc., are recognized In the Statement of Profit and Loss in the penad 11 which the employee rendeds the related service.

Retirement benefit In the form of provident fund are defined coatiibulinn scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable.

The Company recognizes contribution payable as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before
the reporting date exceeds the contribution already paid, Lhe ucficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already patd. If the
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services reccived before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead ta, for example. a reduction in future payment or 2 casn refund

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plar s Jetermined using the projected unit credit method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet
date, which recognized each period of sarvice as giving rise te adaitional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses aj¢ recogrized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through Other
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur Remuasuremelts are not reclassified to orofit or loss In subsequent periods. Past service costs are recognized In Statement
of Profit and Loss on the earlier of:

i) The date of the plan amendment or curtailiment, and

ii) The date that the Company recogmizes related restructuring <osts

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to th: net dufined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognizes the following changes In the net deflned benefit
obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

i) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gumns and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

i) Net interest expense or income

Long term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are nol expected to occur witnin twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a
liability at the present value of the estimated future cash oultiows expected to be made in respect of services rendered by employees at the balance sheet date. The benefits are
discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting p2iicd on Government bonds that have terms approximating

to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as 3 re suil of axperience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a firancii assel of one entity and a financizl liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initlal recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus n the case of financial assets not recorded at falr value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to

the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial & s that require delivery oi assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognized on Lhe trade date, < ¢ the dale that the Company commits to purchase ar sell the asset.

ement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets arv ciassiiadg i four categories:
a. Debt instruments at amortized cost
b. Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at tair vaive tnicugh profit or loss (FVIPL)

Debt instruments at amortized cost:

A ‘debt Instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the (elluwing conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within 2 business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After iniial incasurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method.

amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in
finance income in the profit or loss The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables. For more information on receivables, refer to Not» Si

Debt instrument at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for d=ht instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as
FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instiunicit, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL However, such election is allowed only if
dolng so reduces or ellminates a measurement or recognition 1rwonsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt Instrument as at
FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category aic measuied at fair value with all changes recognlzed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

e




Dethi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : US52599DL2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financlal Statements for the ycar ended March 3

Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial as=2t o1 pait of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the balance sheet)
when:

a. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, w

b. The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards o the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash fiows from an asset or has entered inte a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates If and to what extent It has retalned
the risks and rewards of ownership. \When it has neither tran-icrreu nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the «z12nt of ine company’s continuing involvement. [n that case, the company also recognizes an associated liability, The
transferred asset and the associated lizbility are measued on a basis tiat reflects the rights and ovligations that the company has retained

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee ov.r the Lransferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the company could be required Lo 1epay

Impalrment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expecled credil loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financlal assets and
credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measu e at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance .
b) Trade receivables or any contractual right Lo receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18.
c) Loan commitments which are not reasured as at FVTPL

The company follows 'simplified approa.h’ for recognilion of imparment loss allowance on Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables. The application of simplified approach
does not require the Company to track changes in credit 115« Rathcr, 1t recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its Initial
recognition.

For recagnition of impairment loss on other financial assats 3.4 115k exposure, the company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recagnition. If credit risk has not icreasad significantty, 12-moanth ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is
used. If, in a subsequent periad, credit quality of the insnumient impraves such that there is no longer a signlficant Increase in credit risk since Initial recognition, then the entity
reverts to recognizing impairment loss alloviance based on 12 month £CL

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from ail possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime
ECL which results from default events that are possible within 17 months after the reporting dale

ECL Is the difference between all contractual cash flows that arx due to the company In accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

a) All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare
cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument
b) Cash flows from the sale of collateral held ar other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized duning rhe period 15 recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under
the head 'other expenses’ in the Statement of Profit & Loss Thu valzaace sheet presentation for vaiious financial instruments is described below:

a) Financial assets measured as at anortized cost, contiactual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the talance sheet lhe allo .3nce reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not reduce
Impairment allowance from the gross carying amount

b) Loan commitments and financial guarantes. contracts S¢l i+ presenled as a provision in the bilance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

For assessing increase in credit risk énd impairment loss, the cormpany combines finanaal instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of
facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant incie=30s in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial labilities

Initlal recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recagnition, as financizl liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives.
All financlal liabilltles are recognized initially a: fair valiie and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities indiude trade and olhe:r paiyables, loans and borrowings 'ncluding bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial
instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their clas=ification, as described below!
Financial liabilities at fair value through profil ar loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss incluar tinancial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they arc .icuired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedaing instruments In hedge relationsiips as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatlves are also classlfied as
held for trading unless they are designated as cffective hedaing instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fa:r value thiough profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109
are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value yans/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently
transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the Conioany may transfer the cumulative galn or loss within equity. All other changes In falr value of such llability are
recognized In the Statement of Profit and Loss
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pulhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN ; US2599D0L2005PTC191963)
Motes to Financinl Statements { reh 31, Judl
Loans and borrowings
This Is the category most relevant to the company After | recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Pioiit and | 0ss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortizatlon process.
amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discounl o remium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortization is included as
finance costs in the Statement of Profil and Loss. This catcgory gancrally applics to borrawings For mare information refer Note 11,

Derecognltion

A financial fiability is derecognized when the obligalion under = liability is discharged or cancellad or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms or on existing liability are substantially medified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of & new hability The difforece in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The company determines classification of financial assets anu lLabilities on initial recognition After initlal recognition, no reclassification Is made for financlal assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business modcl are expected to be mficquent. The company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or
internal changes which are significant t¢ the company’s operations Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the company either
begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to ILs operations. If the company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which Is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change In business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognized
gains, losses (induding impairment gamns or losses) or interest

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the ret amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there Is an inlantion to settle on a nei basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial Instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such a5 toiward currency contracts ana cross currency swaps to hedge its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognized at fair value on Lhe date on which a derivative contract I1s enlered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
financlal assets when the fair value I1s positive and as financial iabinties when the Fair value is nigative. Any galns or losses arlsing from changes in the falr value of derivatlves are
taken directly to Statement of Profit and Loss, except for the cficctive portion cash flow hedges, which is recognized in OCI and later reclassified to profit and loss when the hedge
itern effect orofit or loss

Cash and cash equlvalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance shect comprise cash at Lanks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to
an Insignificant risk of changes in value

Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby Profit/{loss) before tax reported undar Statement of Profit and loss is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash
nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash ccoipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated
based on available information

Forelgn currency
The Financial Statements are presented m INR, and the functional currency of the Company is INR (Functional currency of the Company is USD till March 31, 2018).
Transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional cuircncy (foreign currencies) are intially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates at
the date the transaction first qualifics for recognition (Howevar or practical reasons, the company uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of

the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominzled in foreign currencies are translalad at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlcment or translation of ma:iclary items are recagnized in prefit or loss with the exception of the following:

Non-monetary items that are measuiad in terms of historical co:1 i a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign curiency are transtaled using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of
non-monetary items measured at fair value 1s treated in hine #1th the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items
whose fair value gain or loss is recognizaed in OCI or Statement of Profit and Loss are also recognized in OCI or Statement of Profit and Loss, respectively).

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, dervalivey ¢t fair value at each batance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be reccivea to sell an asset : « paud to transfer a hability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumplion that the trans »<tion to sell the asset or transfer tha llabllity takes place elther:

a) In the principal market for the asset or latility, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the inost advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be acces<iole: by the Company



Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : U52599DI1.2009PTC191963)

Notes to Flnanclal Statements for the ycar ended March 31, 2021 —— =
The fair value of an asset or a liability 1s measured using the assumptions that mar<=t garticipires woulld use when pricing the azset or lsbility, assuming that markel participants
act In thelr economlc best interest

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the assct in its highest and best use

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs

All assets and liabilities for which fair value 1s measuied o1 disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measuremaat as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indlrectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for v/hich the lowest level nput thal s significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recagnized in the Financral Stalements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (bascd on the lowest level nput that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.-

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unguoted financial assets measured at fair
value, and for nen-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operatlons.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant asscts, such as properties and unquoted financial assets, and significant liabilitles, such as contingent consideration.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, inde: dence and whether professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s
accounting policles. For this analysis, tlie Company verifies the majar inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreelng the information In the valuation computation to contracts and
other relevant documents,

The Company, in conjunction with the Company’s external valurs, also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine
whether the change is reasonable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has vctuiniiad classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or llabllity and
the level of the fair value hierarchy as «:xplained above

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value Other laie value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.
a) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates an4d :ssurnptions (note 25)

b) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hieraichy note 29)

¢) Financial instruments (including those carried at amortized <osr) (note 28)

P) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the cansideration receisnd or receivable, Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.
Revenue is measured at the fair value uf the consideration roceived or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected
on behalf of the government. Revenue is recugnized when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
specific criteria have been met for eacn of the Company’s aclivitiz:, as described belows

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods at Lhe duty free cutlets operated by the Company is recognized at the time of delivery of goods to customers which coincides with transfer of risks
and reward. Sales are stated net of returns and discounts

Revenue from the sale of goods is recugimized when the gooas aie delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

-The Company has transferred to the buayer the significant nsts and rewards of ownership of goods;

-The Company retains neither continuing managerial mvolveind nt tu the degree usually associated with ownershlp nor effective control over the goods sold;
-The amount of revenue can be measuicd reliably;

-1t is probable that the economic benetils assuciated with thie tiar saction will low to the Company; and

-The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the tiansacl'un can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the signic2nt risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the customer, which coincides with the point of
delivery of the goods to the customer

Interest Income
For all debt instruments measured eitha1 at armortized cost ur at an value through other comprehensive income, Interest income is recorded using the effectlve Interest rate (EIR)

Rental Income
Vislbllity charges has been recognized as per the terms of the contract with the customer.

q) Taxes on income

Current income tax
Current income tax is measured at the amount expecled to bo owi7d Lo the tax authonities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at th
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enact.

amuunl expectad to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
, &t the reporting date

Current Income tax relating to items recognized outsiae profil or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either In other comprehensive Income or in equity). Current tax items are
recognized in correlation to the underlying fransaction eithe: 1 CCl or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax requlations are subject to int=rprelation and establishes provisions where appropriate.




Delhl Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN ¢ US250990H.2008PTE191SET)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ented March 31, A2
peferrad tax
Gefarred tex 5 provided using Lhe |3
purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable tamporary diilerences,

smattind o tempors oy difurenies Betwesn e lax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial Teporting

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary Jdifferences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses, Deferred tax assets are recognized to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductibie temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be wtilk
The carrying amount of defe
Allaw all or part of the defarr
probable that future taxabls

ts 15 reviciel
! to be utill

tli5f date and reduced to the extent that it Is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avallable to
erred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has became
210 be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities ara measured at the tax ral=s (nat are expacted to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or lo.s 15 recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recpanized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in Ol or directly in equity

Defetred tax assets and deferred tax hupilivies are offset if a kzaally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets agalnst current tax labllitles and the deferred taxes relate to
the cam taxable entity and the same taxation authory.

¥) Segment information
The Compary has only one reportanle business seginent, wach 1s operation of duty free outlets at Delhi International Airport and operates in a single business segment.
Accardifialy, the amounts appearing n the Financial Statement: relate to the Company's single business segment.

s) Leases
Effectiviz April 1, 2019, the Company has atl:
transition option to recognize Right of use ot

jbed Ind AS 116 ™ 5" applicd to all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method along with
sets (RoU) at an anaunt equal Lo the lease liability.

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contiact conveys the rght te control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Where the Company is the lessec

aszet lob the leass tarm at the lease commencement date. The cost of the rloht-of-use asset
sa |iahility adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date lass
% 14 sybseguantly measured at cost less any accumiulated depreciation, accumulated

rHght = gespt is deprociated from the commencement date an a stralght-line basis over
ted for impairment whenever thare is any indication that their carrying amounts may

ting Ws-pant 1
AN L e

measured at Inceptien spall «
any lease ineentives recelved, plus
Impairment losses, I any and ad)
tive shorter of the |gase term and 1
ot be recoverable, Impairmv
Tne Company measures the
Using the interest rate irsplicit in “(e | .
feases with reasanably similar o : ' vyt Eheine
Nixed payments, variable i et vl iy
payments of penaltes for : t
increasing the carrying amount
reflect any reassessmant or lease
The Company recognizes the aimo
reduced to zero and there iz furt
Profit and Loss.

lur any rem
=0l th

st are not pald at the commencement date of the lease, The |leaze payments are discountad
yate cubnot be readily determinad, the Company Uses |néremental borrowing rate. For
prrovang Tate for the entire porifolio of leasss as & whole. The lease payments shall include
a putehiee aption where the Company is reasanably ceriain o exerciee that option and

ceming on option ko terminats the lease. The lsase liahility (s subsequantly remazasured by
rrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to
leiise poyments,
et o e sl as an sdjustment to the right-af-use asset. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is

j ot ol the oo Hatiliny, the Company recogniyas any remaining amount of the re-measurement in Statement of

can b My & min

IR

np
1 oreducon b b

Where the Company is the Lessor

| transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance
incame |5 allocated to accounting pariods 5o as to reflect a constant perodic rate of

|Leases are dlassitied s fimance les
lezses are recarded as racalv
raturn on the net nvastment a

ol g
Financa loage

e

1 thd e

Leases where the Company ds 5-anfl e el temtal to vnetship of the asset are dassified as pperating leases, Lease rantals undsr
opetating Icases are recogniz ¢ Lthe iy, Coltlngent rents are recognized as revenue i the perod in which they are warned.

t) Operating cycle
Assets and liabilities are classihied ac currenl if it is expected Lo reahize or settle within 12 montns after the balance sheet date.

2.3 Recent accountina oronouncements

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Cotporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification, amended Schedule 11T of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division I, 11 and IIT
of Schedule 111 and are applicable from April |, 2021. Key amc? uraunts relating to Division 1T which relate to companies whose financial statements are required to comply with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are

Balance Sheet;

» Lease |labilitics should be separatuly disciossd under the head “imondial liabilities’, duly distinguished as current or non-current.

» Cortain additicnal disclosures in the statement of changes in vquity such as changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the
current reporting penod.

« Spacified format for disclosure of

« Spedhiad furmat for ageing sthidule
o IF & company has not wsed fupgs for !
« Specific disclosure under "addibion i
daeds of immovable property not hold inhs
property held etc.

Statement of profit and loss:

« Additional disclosures relating to Corparate Social Responsibing, (CSR), undisclosed income and crypto or virtual currency specified under the head *additional information’ in the
notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

g payabiles, capital vatk-ineprodress and intangible asset under development,
¢ llien it was bor A fromy banks and financial institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

o as compiiance with 2pprovid schemes of arangaments, compliance with number of layers of companies, title
1% and advances ta pr = directors, key managerial persanng| (KMP) and related parties, details of benaml

The amendments are extensive and the Company wll evalusts ' e same to give effect to them as required by law.

F New i
El New De!h;)_?]




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : US2399DL2009P TCI9196))
Notes to Financlal Statements for the year ended March 3L, 2021
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

3. Property, plant and equipment
The changes in the carrying value of properiy, plant and equipment for the seur ended March 31, 2021 are as follows:

Loessglinhl

Particulars et Plant & equipment  Furniture & fixtures Computers Office equipment Vehicles Total
: LR M
Gruss carrying value as at April 1, 2020 42.20 11.57 20.00 4.53 0.48 0.30 79.08
Additions 003 . 0.39 025 0.02 - 0.71
Delctions — - s (0.01) = = = (0,01}
Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2021 . 4235 . 11.57 20,38 4.78 0.50 0.30 1978
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2020 12.61 6.45 5.76 372 0.41 0.16 29.11
Depreciation 672 1.58 3.97 0.46 0.05 0.06 12.34
Accumulated depreciation on deletions — - (0,01} - - - (0017
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2021 = 1883 O3 9.72 418 0.46 0.22 4144
Carrying value as at March 31, 2021 23.42 3.54 10.66 0.60 0.04 0.08 38.34
Carrying value as at March 31, 2020 29,359 5.12 14.24 0.81 0.07 0.14 49,97
The changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the vear ended NMarch 31, 2020 ure as follows:
) - winel e ] .
Particulars ||n||:: II:‘ |I|‘|J:‘|I|r Plant & cquipment  Furniture & fixtures Computers Office equipment Vehicles Tatal
- d 2yE L1 —
Gross carrying value as at Aprit 1, 2019 3295 14.38 12.81 4.23 0.49 0.30 65.16
Additions DR 1.88 7.19 0.62 0.02 - 19.03
Deletions - (AL A hoty ((.32) (0.03) = (5.1
Gross carrying value as at Mar 31, 2020 [ A2, 1157 20.00 4.51 0.48 (.30 79.08
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1,2019 6.50 954 254 353 038 0.10 22.59
Depreciation 613 1.59 322 0.5l 0.06 0.06 11.57
Accumulated depreciation on delctions R e (4.08) - (0.32) (0.03) - (5.05)
Accumulated depreciation as at Mar 31, 2020 = .45 - 576 A2 41 0,16 29.11
Carrying value as at March 31, 2020 29.59 5.12 14.24 0.81 0.07 0.14 49.97
Carrying value as at March 31,2019 26413 4.84 10.27 0.70 0.11 0.20 42.57
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020
Capital work in progress 0.73 1.22

Capital work in progress comprises ot expenditure on lease hold improvements in the course of constiuction

For details of Property, plant and equipment pledged as secunity for borrowing  Reler Note 11

>




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : U52599D1.2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the ycar ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless othcrwise stated)

4. Intangible assets

The changes in the carrying valuc of intangibles for the year ended March 31, 2021 are as follows:

Parti Computer Software Licenses** Total
articulars i (Avquired)
Gross carrying value as at April 1, 2020 4.72 260.85 265.57
Additions 0.18 0.18
Deletions o = Z =
Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2020 ] 4.90 260.85 265.75
Accumulated amortization as at April 1, 2020 4.06 179.10 183.16
Amortization 0.48 17.34 17.82
Accumulated amortization on deletions - -
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2021 . 4.54 196.44 200.98
Carrying value as at March 31, 2021 0.36 64.41 64.77
Carrying value as at March 31, 2020 0.66 81.75 82.41
The changes in the carrying valuc of intangibles for the year ended March 31, 2020 are as follows:
Particulars o - - Computer Software Licenses** Total

(Acquired)
Gross carrying value as at April 1, 2019 437 260.85 265.22
Additions 035 - 0.35
Deletions i . - -
Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2020 4.72 260.85 265.57
Accumulated amortization as at April 1,2019 349 161.73 165.22
Amortization 0.57 17.37 17.94
Accumulated amortization on deletions - = = %
Accumulated amortization as at March 31,2020 . 4.06 179.10 183.16
Carrying value as at March 31, 2020 0.66 81.75 82.41
Carrying value as at March 31, 2019 0.88 99.12 100.00

**Licenses represents right to run and operate duty free shops (Also refer Note 1). The remaining amortization period is 4 years 4 months (as at March 31,

2020 - 5 years 4 months)

\)917



Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : US2599D1.2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2021
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

5. Financial assets

SA. Loans

Carried at amortized cost
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits

- To velated parties

- To other parties

Total

SB. Other financial assets

Non current

As at
Murch 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Current

As at
March 31, 2021

As at

March 31, 2020

Carried at amortized cost

Unsecured

Considered good

Balances with banks to the extent held as nmungin money against bank guarantees

[nterest accrued but not duc on bank deposits
Credit card collections in hand

Amounts recoverable from related partics

Amount recoverable towards rebate, promotion. cle
Considered doubtful

Amount recoverable towards rebate, promation, cte
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful reccivables
Total other financial assets

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubfful receivables (expected credit loss allowance)

Particulars

Balance as at April 1, 2020
Add : Created during the year
Less : Released during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2021

Particulars

Balance as at April 1, 2019
Add : Created during the year
Less : Released during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2020

6. Other assets

Capital advances

Advance to suppliers, etc.
Prepaid expenses and leases
Balance with government authoritics
Considered good
Considered doubtful
Less: Provision for doublful reccivahles

an

159.23 143.07 0.56 0.42
7.31 6.65 0.43 0.49
— 166.54 149.72 0.99 0.91
- ) Non current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
0.62 0.61 -
0.11 0.04 0.01 0.02
- 1.18 0.01
= 1.02 37.01
- - 2547 79.00
- 1.22 1.19
- B (1.22) (1.19)
0.73 0.65 27.68 116.04
- Amount
(1.19)
(0.03)
— (1.22)
Amount
(1.21)
0.02
(1.19)
- Non current Current
As at As at As at As at
Narch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
. 0.01 0.09 -
A __ 0.01 0.09 - -
- - 1.02 1.52
0.02 3.55 an 3.03
0.68 0.93 0.99 2.60
0.68 043 -
(0.68) (0.43) - -
(B) 0.70 4.48 5.12 7.15
Total ____ 0.71 4.57 5.12 7.15




Dclhi Duty Free Scrvices Private Limited (CIN @ US2599DL2009PTC 191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in Rupces crore, unless otherwise stated)

7. Inventories

As at
S March 31, 2021

(Valued at cost or NRV, whichever is lower)
Slock in trade - traded goods (including goods in uansit
Rs. 3.78 crores and as at March 31, 2020 Rs.23.87 102.81
crores) R S ———

Total __ 102.81
Notes:

7.1: The cost of inventories recognized as an expense duting the year - Rs 108 83 crore (year ended March 31, 2020: Rs. 503.30 crore)

As at

__ March31,2020

211.64

211.64

7.2: The cost of Inventories recognized as an expense includes Rs 3.33 crore (March 31, 2020: Rs. 0 62 crore) towards provision for slow/ non-moving items during year.

7.3: The above inventories have been pledged as security for borrowings (Refer Note 1),

8. Cash and cash equivalents

As at
March 31, 2021
Balances with Banks T o a
-in current accounts 1.10
-in EEFC accounts 9.95
Cash on hand e 1.50
Total= 1255
8A. Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
T N - o As at
B March 31, 2021
Balances with banks to the extent held as mamgin money 043
against bank guarantees o :
Total 0.43

8B. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from linancing activities during the year ended March 31, 2021.

As at
March 31, 2020
1.60
3.07
1.87
6.54

W

As at
March 31, 2020
0.42
0.42

——

. N - - Cash flow during the period As at March 31,
particulars . - Asut AI_" i 1, 2020 2 Proceeds Payment Net Cash Flow 2021
Long Term Borrowings - Term Loans (including current 41.26 1.77 (23.15) (21.38) 19.87
maturities of long-term borrowings)
Short-term borrowings - | I 24.66 - (1339 (13.39) 11.27
Total S 65.92 1.77 (36.54) (34.77) 31.15

&
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : U52599DL200YPTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

10. Other equity

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
General Reserve 998 9.98
Foreign currency translation rescrve (4.58) (4.58)
Hedge reserve - 9.34
Rctained eamings 244.27 274.13
Total 249.67 288.87
Particulars As at As at
= e = — March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
10.1 General reserve
Balance at the beginning of the yeal 9.98 998
Changes during the year = -
Balance at the end of the year 9.98 9.98
10.2 Foreign currency translation reserve |Refer Note 2.2(n)]
Balancc at the beginning of the yew (4.58) (4.58)
Changes during the year = -
Balance at the end of the year (4.58) (4.58)
10.3 Hedge reserve |[Refer Note 2.2(k)]
Balance at the beginning of the yeu 9.34 4.23
Changes during the ycar 2.37 S.11
Transfer to profit and loss (.7
Balance at the end of the year - 9.34
10.4 Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the yeu 274.13 239.26
Add: Net profit/(loss) for the year (30.14) 141.36
Less : Payment of dividends and tax thercon
Final dividend on equily shares Tor the year ended on Marei 31, 2019 (Rs. 2.00 per share) - (16.00)
Taxcs on final dividends (previous yeu @ 20.5553%) - (3.29)
Interim dividend (previous year Rs 9 0 pey share) (72.00)
Taxces on interim dividends (previous yea (e 20 5553%) - (14.80)
243.99 274.53
Other items of comprchensive income (OCH)
cher comprehensive income arising [rom 1e-measticment of defined benelit obligations net of 028 (0.40)
income tax
Balance at the cnd of the year 244.27 274.13
Total (10.1 + 10.2 + 10.3+10.4) 249.67 288.87

Note :

- Geneial reserve is created from lime 1o lime by way of Gansfer of profits fiom the ictained earninus General reserve is created by transfer of one component of equity to another and

is not an item of other comprehensive income

- Retained Earnings: Retained Earnings are the profits that the Company has earned (il date, less auy iransfer to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.

QH\



Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : U52599DL2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

11. Financial liabilities - Borrowings

Non - Current

Asat As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Secured
From banks:
Term loans (Refer Notes (i) & (ii) below) 19.87 41.26
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings o 10.86 24.79
- 9.01 16.47
Short term borrowings :
- Buyers credit (Refer Notes (i) & (iv) below) - =
Loan repayable on demand (Refer Notes (i) & (iii) below) —=_ - -
Total I 9.01 16.47

(i) The borrowings are secured by:

Current

As at
March 31, 2021

As at

March 31, 2020

& 0.67
11.27 23.99
11.27 24.66
11.27 24.66

- First charge by way of hypothecation of the Company's stock in tade and other movables including book-debts, bills whether documentary or clean, outstanding monies, receivables,

both present and future,
- First charge on movable fixed assets of the Company. buth present and funne
- Escrow agreement wilh the bank und the Company for first and exclusive charge on receivable.

(ii) Terms of repayment of securcd loans
Term Loan It

As at Mareh 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

B

Quarter ending Nu. of Quarters Quarterly installments Total amountgs~ = No. of ) Quarterly installments GRS Amgnt of

—— —— e e Installments uarters Installments
December 2020 | 2.40 2.40
December 2019 — September 2020 e - - 2 6.00 12.00
Total S - 14.40

Rate of interest was in the range of 7.40% to 8 55% p a
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : US2599D1.2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements lor the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in Rupces crore, unless otherwise siated)

Term Loan 11,1V and V :

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

|

Quarter ending No. of Quarters Total amount of No. of
Quarterly installments

Quarterly installments

Total amount of

Installments  Quarters Install t
June 2023 | 0.41 0.41
March 2023 [ 043 0.43 I 0.40 0.40
Dccember 2022 | 2.71 2.71 1 0.41 0.41
September 2022 [ 2.7 2.7 1 2.60 2.60
June 2022 I 2.74 2.74 i 2.59 2.59
March 2022 ! 274 2.74 ] 2.63 2.63
December 2021 | 2.71 2.71 1 2.63 2.63
September 2021 ! 2.71 2.71 1 2.60 2.60
June 2021 [ 2.71 2.71 | 2.60 2.60
June 2020 - March 2021 - 4 2.60 10.40
Tatal - - 19.87 26,86
The present interest rate for Term Loan H1, TV and V tue INI Lo is in the vange o 7.30% to 8.75% pa.
(iiii) The present rate of interest on cash credit (INR) is 7 30% to 8.40% p.a_and on WCDL is 6.90°. 10 6.95%
(iv) [nterest rates on buyer's ciedit weie in the tange of 2.21% 10 3.80% p a
12. Financial liabilities - Trade payables

o o As at As at

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Total outstanding due to micro and small enterprises (Reter Note 32)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total
*Includes amount due to related pariies Rs. 20 02 crore (Previous year Rs 30.63 ciore)

0.99 1.76
60.62 179.27
61.61 181.03

Credit period varies as per the conuactual levms of vanious suppliers: vendors. The Company his appropriale policy in place to ensure that all dues are paid within the credit terms

agreed with the parties.

13. Other financial liabilities

Non Curient

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
Derivative contracts _ = 3.92
o - 3.92
Other financial liabilities at amortized cost
Current maturities of long tenn borrowings - -
(Refer Note 11)
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings -
Payables towards property, plant and cquipmenti! o - -
Total — - 3.92

# Includes total outstanding micto and small enteiprises Rs. 031 crore (Previous year Rs, 0.37 crorey (Refer note 32)

(ﬂ/s

Current
As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
10.86 24.79

0.00 0.45

4.19 4.58

15.05 29,82

15.05 29.82




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : US2599DL2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

14, Other liabilities

Non Current
As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Current
As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Advances from customers - 0.64 0.39
Statutory dues - 5.39 6.26
Total - - 6.03 6.65
15, Provisions o
Non Current Current
As at As at As at As at
o March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences 1.47 2.17 0.21 0.39
Provision for gratuity 4.37 451 0.58 0.63
Total 5.84 6.68 0.79 1.02

(¥



Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : US2599D1.2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

16. Income tax

The major components of income tax expunse for the yeal
_Statement of Profit and Loss:

for the year ended
Mareh 31, 2021

Tor the year ended
March 31, 2020

Current income tax:
Cunent income tax charge

Deferred tax:

Relating Lo origination and reversal ol temporary dilterences

Income tax expenses reported in the Statement ol Profit and Loss
(e]o]]

Deleried tax related to items recognized in OCI during in the yean:

Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Tax charged to OCl

Reconciliation of tax expense and thte accounting profit multiplicd by India’s domestic tax rate

5311
(9.44) 1.55
(9.44) 54.66
(0.10) 0.14
(0.10) 0.14

for the year ended

for the year ended

Accounting profit/ (loss) before tax
At applicable income tax rate of 25 168%, (previous yein 25 168%%)

1ot deduclible in determining taxable proii

Tax efTect of expenses / (income) that are

Unwinding of discount on security deposits [or licenses (net)

Donation

Hedge item

Effect of change in tax rate from 34 94445 1o 25.168% (Reler IFootnote)
Others

Tax expense as per Statement of Profit and Loss

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(39.58) 196.02
(9.96) 49.34
0.66 0.69
1.04 0.96

(2.95) -
- 326
1:77 041
(9.44) 54.66

Footnote:-The Company elected to excicise the option penmitted under section | 15BAA ol the Income Tax Act 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the
Company 1ecognized Provision for Income Tax and 1e-measuied its Deferred Tax Assels basis the vate prescribed in the said section and impact of the same was recognized in the year ended March 31,
2020 The Company has also recagnized prosision for Income Tax and Deferred Tax Assets for the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021 basis the rate prescribed in the said section.

The deferred tax assets as on March 31, 2021 has been carrivd lorward as the management 1 confident that the impact of COVID is short term and improvement in trading conditions will make it more

probable thal the entity will be able to penerate sulficicnt tixuble profit in the futwe for the deferred tax asseis 1o meet (he recognition criteria.
Deferred tax on timing differences as on March 31, 2021 s caleulated at 25 168%%

Deferrved tax:

Opcening Balance i'(L-k>|)gni-7.'c'Ei|1 Statement Recognized

Recognized in Equity

Closing balance

(As at of Prolit and Loss in OCI (As at March 31, 2021)
April 01, 2020)

Deferred tax assets (net) ) ) o B T

Tax cffect of items conslituting deferred ax assels 7 (liabjlity)

- Property plant and Equipment: Iinpact of differences betw cen tax depicciation 5.82 1.12 6.94
and deprecialion/amorlization charged in the financial statements

- Unabsorbed depreciation and carry torward ol Joss (1eler foumote} - 8.61 - 8.61
- Provision for stock loss 051 0.84 - 1.35
- Provision for employee benefils 1.94 (0.17) (0.10) 1.67
- Provision for custom duty payable 0.99 0.07 - 1.06
- Allowance for bad and doubtful reccivables 041 0.08 - 0.48
- Impact of lease liability — 0.59 (1.1 - (051
Delerred tax assets (net) — _ 1026 9.44 (0,10} - 1960
Footnote:- This includes tax on unabsotbed depreciation of Rs. 210 Crores.

Reconciliations of deferred tax liabilitics/assets (net)
n - o {or the year ended for the year ended

o _ o March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Opening balance 10.26 11.67

Tax incomc/(expense) during the year 1ecognized in Statement ol Prolitand Loss 9.44 (1.55)

Tax expense during the year recognized in Lauily 0.00 0.00

Tax income/(cxpensc) during the year recopnized in OCI :=: . (0.10) .14

Closing balance 19.60 10.26

¢



Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : U52599DL2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

17. Revenue from operations

for the year ended
March 31, 2021

for the year ended
March 31, 2020

Revenue from operations
Sale of products - traded goods

18. Other income

272.23

1,414.59

Total 272.23

1,414.59

for the year ended

for the year ended

Interest income earned on financial assets that are not designated at fair value through profit or

loss:

- Interest on Bank deposils

- Interest on coupon received from bank

-Unwinding of discounts on securily deposits given
Other non-operating income

- Visibility charges

- Transfer from hedge reserve

- Liability no longer required wrilten back

- Provision for doubtful debts written back

-'Lease liability written back (Reter note 34)

- Miscellaneous Income

- Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment

19, Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

0.08 0.11
0.09 0.88
16.97 15.28
0.21 1.94

11.71 -

0.22 -
- 0.02
6.33 1.17

0.00 =
- 0.01
Total 35.61 19.41

for the year ended

for the year ended

- Muarch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Closing stock
- Stock in trade - traded goods 102.81 211.64
102.81 211.64
Less :
Opening stock
- Stock in trade - traded goods 211.64 196.45
211.64 196.45
(Increase) / decrease 108.83 (15.19)

- Stock in trade - traded goods

(;(7(7




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : U52599DL2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

20. Employee benefits expenses*

for the year ended
March 31, 2021

for the year ended
March 31, 2020

Salaries, wages and bonus (including deputed stalf cost)
Contribution to provident and other tunds

Gratuity expenses (Refer Note 26(b))

Staff welfarc cxpenses

*Net of recoveries

21, Depreciation and amortization expense

24.42 37.36

2.85 3.37

1.03 1.11

0.18 1.38

Total 28.48 43.22

for the year ended
March 31, 2021

for the year ended
March 31, 2020

Depreciation and amortization of pioperty, plant and cquip_menl—( Refer Note 3)
Amortization of intangible assets (Refer Note 4)
Amortization of Right of use assets (Refer Note 34)

22. Finance costs

Interest expense for financial liabilities not classified at FVTPL
Interest on lease liability

Other borrowing costs (guarantee chatpes, clc )

Intcrest on delayed payment of statutoiy ducs

™

12.34 11.57

17.82 17.94

13.21 7.28

Total 43.37 36.79
for the year ended for the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

5.60 7.22

3.81 2.13

0.26 0.31

0.01 (.17

Total 9.68 9.83




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : U52599D1.2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwisc stated)

23. Other expenses

for the year ended for the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Rent 2.60 2.46
Insurance 2.64 1.79
Repairs and maintenance
-Computers 2.09 2.59
-Others 0.85 I.14
Electricity, Fuel and water charges (nel of recovery) 4.54 4.12
Advertising and sales promotion 2.25 541
Legal and Professional Fees 6.02 22.49
Travelling and conveyance 0.12 1.57
Payment to auditors (Refer Note (i) below) 0.28 0.35
Contribution towards corporate social responsibility (CSR) (Reler Note 33) 4.14 3.82
Marketing fees 3.23 16.80
Concession fees 100.61 525.69
Airport service charges 7.84 7.56
Commission on collections 1.67 10.98
Warehouse and transportation 9.41 12.06
Packing charges 0.63 4.59
Detention charges 0.00 0.04
Exchange differences (net) 3.22 14.73
Provision for bad and doubtful receivables 0.28 -
Director's sitting fee 0.14 0.17
Net loss on sale / discard of Property, Plant and Equipment including CWIP (net)

0.49 -
Miscellaneous expenses 3.00 6.48
Total 156.05 644.84

Note (i)

for the year ended
March 31, 2021

for the year ended
March 31, 2020

Payment to Auditors (inclu&iin;;v G_S_ITF L

For Audit fee 0.15 0.15
For Taxation matters - 0.07
For other services 0.12 0.11
For reimbursement of expense 0.01 0.02

Total 0.28 0.35

# net of fees amount reimbursed / reimbursable by GMR Airports Limited and GMR [nfrastructure Limited towards their IPO/bond issue related activities

Rs.0.59 crores (previous year March 31, 2020 - Rs.0.16 crores)
24. Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

for the year ended
March 31, 2021

for the year ended
March 31, 2020

Profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company (Rs. in crores) (30.14)
Weighted Average number of cquity shares used lor computing Earning Per Share 80,000,000
(Basic)

Earning/ (loss) Per Share (Basic) (in Rs.) 3.77)
Eaming/ (loss) Per Share (Diluted) (in Rs.) 3.77)
Face value per share (in Rs.) 10

(W\

141.36
80,000,000
17.67

17.67
10



Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : U52599DL2009P'1'C191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
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25, Significant accounting judgements, estimafes and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s Ind AS Financial Information requires management lo make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues. expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about thesc assumptions and cstimates coutd result in oulcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affccted in
future periods.

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts ol assets and liabilitics within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Ind AS Financial Information was prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change duc 10 market changes o1 circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they oceur.

Fair value measurement of financial instrumecnts

When the fair values of financial assets and linancial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs
such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
See Note 29 for further disclosures

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
The Company reviews the estimated uselul lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting year. There was no
change in the useful life of property, piant and cquipment and intangible assets as compared to year ended March 31, 2020.

Contingent liabilities and provisions

The Company is involved in various (ax matters, the outcome ot which may not be favourable to the Company. Management in consultation with the tax
advisers assess the likelihood that a pending claim will succeed. The Company has applied its judgement and has recognised liabilities based on whether
additional amounts will be payable and has included contingent liabilities where economic outflows are considered possible but not probable.

Leases

Effective April 01, 2019, the Company adopted the new lease standard (Ind AS 116) using the modified retrospective method applied to lease
arrangements that were in place on the transition date. Ind AS 116 requires the Company to recognize a right-of-use lease asset and lease liability for
operating and finance leases. The right-of-use asset is measured as the sum of the leasc liability, prepaid or accrued lease payments, any initial direct costs
incurred and any other applicable amounts.

The identification and calculation of the leasc hability requires the Company to make certain assumptions for each lease, including identification of asset,
substantive right of substitution, right to obtain cconomic benefits trom use, lease term and discount rate implicit in each lease, which could significantly
impact the gross lease liability. the duration and the present value ol the lease liability. When calculating the lease term, the Company considers the
renewal, cancellation and termination rights available to the Company and the lessor. The Company determines the discount rate by calculating the
incremental borrowing rate on a collateralized basis at the commencement of a lease or upon a change in the lease term.

L
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
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26. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

a) Defined Contribution plans

The Company makes Provident Fund contributions which are defined contribution plans, lor qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is
required to contribute a specified percentuge of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company recognized Rs. 2.85 crores (March 31, 2020: Rs. 3.37
crores) for Provident Fund contributions in the Statcment of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in
the rules of the schemes.

b) Defined Benefit plans - gratuity (unfunded)

The Company has a defined benefit giatity plan (unfunded). Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure @
15 days of last drawn basic salary for cach completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months

These plans typically expose the Company 10 actuarial risks such as interest rate visk, longevity 1isk and salary risk.

Interest rate risk
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the planned liabilitics

Longevity risk
The present value of the defined benelit plun liability is caleulated by reference to the best estimate of the morality of planned participants both during and after
the employment. An increase in the lile expectancy ol the planned participants will increase the planned liabilities.

Salary risk
The present value of the defined benetit plun liability is calculated by reference to the future saliies of planned participants. As such an increase in salary of
the planned participants will increase the planned liabilities

No other post retirement benefits are provided to the employces

The following tables summarize the components ol nel benefit expense recognized in the Stalement of Profit and Loss and the funded status and amounts
Plan assets at the year end, at fair value

- ~ March31,2021  March 31,2020
Present value of benefit obligation at year ended (4.95) (5.14)
Plan assets at the year ended, at fair value - i -
Net (liability) recognized in the balance sheet o “495) 5.14)
Net employee benefit expense (recognized in Employee Cost)
- - March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Current Service Cost 0.68 0.82
Net Interest Cost o 0.35 0.29
— 103 111
Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
- March31,2021  March 31, 2020
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on obligations (0 38) 0.54
Balance sheet o S )
— e - o . March 31, 2021 - March 31, 2020
Decfined benefit obligation (-4 95) (5.14)
Fair value of plan assets - i -
Plan asset / (liability) o (4.95) (5.14)

({V\
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

Changes in the present value of the delined benefit obligation are as follows:

March 31, 2021

Opening defined benefit obligation

Interest cost

Current service cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial losses/ (gain) on obligation-cexperience
Closing defined benefit obligation

The principal assumptions used in delermining gratuily obligation [or the Company's plans a

March 31, 2020

514 3.78
033 029
068 0.82
(08D 0.29)
(0.38) 0.54
4.95 5.14

re shown below:

Discount rate (in %)
Salary Escalation (in %)
Expected rate of return on assets
Altrition rate (in %)
Up to 30 Years
From 31 to 44 years
Above 44 years

I Gratuity
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
6.79% 6.76%
7.00% 7.00%
40 00% 40.00%
15 0% 15.00%
1 00%, 1.00%

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields available on Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the

obligations.

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation. tuke account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply

and demand in the employment market.

Maturity profile of defined benelit obligation

__Asat March 31, 2021

Ay at March 31, 2020

Year | (58 0.63
Year2 0,63 0.55
Year 3 034 0.54
Year 4 0.39 0.49
Year 5 032 0.34
Next 5 years 248 2.59
Experience Adjustments ) - -

, March 31, March 31, | March 31,
Particulars - N}arch 31,2021 _ March 31, 2020 2019 2018 2017
Defined benefit obligation b5 5.14 3.78 2.92 2.47
Plan assets IE— I [l - - - -
Surplus / (Deficit) S B (495) (5.14) (3.78) (2.92) (247)
Expcricnee adjustments on plan liabilitics (loss) gain (0.37) (0.21) (0.19) (0.07) 0.02
Experience adjustments on plan asse(s (loss)/gain | N > z =
Gratuity Plan

Assumptions

Sensitivity Level
March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Impact on defined benefit obligation
March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Discount rate

Future salary increases

0.5% decrease
0.5% dccrease

0.5% increase

0.5% increase

0.5% increase
0 5% increasc

0.5% decrease
0.5% decrease

- Amount Amount
(0.18) 0.19 0.18 0.17)
(0 16) 0.17 0.16 (0.15)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extiapolates the impact on defined bencfit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key
assumptions occurring at the end of the year, Sensitiviues due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change not calculated.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
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27. Contingent liabilities and Commitments ('O THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR)
(i) Contingent Liabilities
(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged us debt

As at As at
- - March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1.24 1.24

Income tax*

*[ncome tax represent amount demanded for Assessment year 2018-19 from the Company. The amount relates to various matters relating to
disallowances. The Compuny do not expect any outflow on this account.

(b) The Company had filed three refund applications dated 31.01.2018 under section 11(B) of Central Excise Act, 1944 seeking refund of Rs.
40.62 Crores being the service tax and cess paid on license fecs, marketing fees, airport services charges and utility charges during the period
October 2016 to June 2017 for services rendered to the Company at the duty-Iice shops at T-3, IGI Airport, Delhi. Such refund claims were filed
in pursuance of the decision of the CESTAT Mumbai in Commissioner of Service Tax - VII, Mumbai vs. Flemingo Duty Free Pvt Ltd 2018 (8)
GSTL 181 (Tri. Mumbai) (Flemingo) wherein it was held that scrvice tax on license fee was not payable since services were provided outside
taxable territory.

In respect of the said refund applications. the Company received a Show Cause Notice (SCN) dated 24.08.2018 that refund claims for the period
October 2016 to January 2017 were barred by limitation and reiund cannot be processed. Vide order dated 06.09.2018, the Assistant
Commissioner, CGST held that only the period of October 2016 to December 2016 is barred by limitation and denied refund of Rs. 12.78
Crores. The balance amount of Rs. 27 8+ Crores was allowed in [avour of the Company and subsequently refunded to the Company, which was
recognized as income in Statement of Profit and Loss during the quarter and six months ended September 30, 2018 when this refund was
received. The Department filed an appeal against the aforesaid Order dated 06.09.2018 before Commissioner (Appeals) to the extent refund of
Rs. 27.84 Crores held to be payable to (he Company. The said appeal of the Department has been rejected by the Commissioner (Appeals) vide
Order dated 18.05.2020. On 04 08,2020 the Department filed an appeal before the CESTAT, New Delhi against the order of Commissioner
(Appeal) dated 18.05.2020.

As against denial of refund of Rs 12.78 Crores, the Company tiled an appeal before the Commissioner (Appeals) who rejected the appeal on
10.05.2019 and upheld the Order dated 06.09.2018. The Company filed an appeal before the CESTAT, New Delhi who allowed the appeal of
the Company vide its Order dated 14.08.2019 and held that since service tax was not payable on license fee, the limitation prescribed under
Section 11B of the Central Excise Act, 1944 has no application Accordingly, refund of Rs. 12.78 Crores is allowed in favour of the Company.
The Department served a copy ol the appeal along with application for stay against the CESTAT Order dated 14.08.2019 before the Delhi High
Court in March 2020 which has yet to be listed.

(¥
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The Company had also filed application dated 31.12.2018 with the Department for the period April 2010 to September 2016 seeking refund of
service tax and cess amounting lo Rs.182 13 Crores paid on the input services (concession fee, marketing fee, airport service charges and utility
charges) rendered to the Company at the duty-free shops at T-3, 1GI Airport, Delhi. The Assistant Commissioner issued the Order dated
26.06.2019 rejecting the claim filed by the Company that the Duly-free shops are in non-taxable territory. The Company filed an appeal on
07.08.2019 against the Assistant Commissioner’s Order before Commissioner (Appeals) and received an Order dated 26.05.2020 in favour of
the Company allowing the refund of Rs. 182.13 Crores. The Company requested the Asst. Commissioner to process the refund based on the
Order passed by the Commissioner (Appeals). The Assistant Commissioner issued a SCN dated 04.08.2020 asking the Company to explain that
the refund claim is not hit by the bar of unjust enrichment as incidence of duly appears to be passed by the Company to their customers at the
time of sale of goods. Subscquently on 04.08.2020 the Department tiled an appeal before the CESTAT, New Delhi against the Order of
Commissioner (Appeals) dated 26.05.2020. The Company filed a reply before the CESTAT on 24.12.2020 against the department’s appeal dated
04.08.2020 before the CESTA'T which has yet to be listed

In the meanwhile, the Assistant Commissioner issued (wo separate Orders dated 10.12.2020 on the respective SCNs and rejected the refund of
service tax of Rs 182.13 crores and Rs 12.78 crores. On 23.12.2020 the Company filed a rectification / recall request under Section 74 of the
Finance Act, 1994 against both the rejection Orders before the Assistant Commissioner. Subsequently the Company also filed an Appeal against
both the rejection Orders ol the Assistant Commissioner. before the Commissioner (Appeals) on 15.02.2021, which is yet to be heard.

The Company has received responses [rom the Assistant Commissioner vide its letier dated 03.03.2021 and 15.03.2021 with reference to both
the rectification / recall request for an amount of Rs 12,75 crores and Rs 182.13 crores respectively. The letters states that there is no mistake /
error in both the Orders dated 10.12.2020 and the Compuny may file an appeal before the appropriate authority.

Having regard to status of matiers referred above and in view of inherent uncertainty in predicting final outcome of above litigations, involving

refunds, which is sub-judice. refund of Rs. 27.84 Crores (as al March 31,2020 - Rs. 27.84 crores) received in an earlier year has been
considered as contingent liability by the management

(ii) Capital Commitments

As at As at
- March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Estimated amount of contracts remaining o be execuled on capital account and not 0.37 0.72
provided for (net of capital advances)

(OA
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(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

28A. Financial assets and liabilitics

The accounting classification of cach catcpary of financial insnument, their canying amounts and their fair values are set out below:

As at March 31, 2021

Financial Assets

Fair value through
= _prufit or loss

Fair value through other
comprehensive income

Amortized cost Total carrying value Total fair value

Loans 167.53 167.53 167.53
Cash and cash equivalents 12.55 12.55 12.55
Other financial assets . - 28.83 28.83 28.83

Total _ = —= 208.91 208.91 208.91

Financial Liabilities

Fair value through
profit or loss

Fair value through other
comprehensive income

Amortized cost

Total carrying value Total fair value

Borrowings

Trade payables

Leasc Liabilitics

Other financial liabilitics

Total

As at March 31, 2020

31.14 3114 31.14

- 61.61 61.61 61.61

- 99.88 99.88 99.88

- . 4.20 4.20 4.20
: - 196.83 196.83 196.83

Financial Assets

Fair value through
_prolitor loss

Loans
Cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets

Totul

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings

Trade payables

Lease Liabilities

Other financial liabilities

Tatal

Fair valuc through other

_comprehensive income

Amortized cost

Total carrying value Total fair value

- 150.63 150.63 150.63
6.54 6.54 6.54

- & - 17.1 117.11 L17.11
- : - 274.28 274.28 274.28

Fair value through
prolit or loss

Fair value through other
comprechensive income

i

Y

i

Amortized cost

Total carrying value Total fair value

65.92 65.92 65.92
181.03 181.03 181.03

22.76 22.76 22.76

5.03 8.95 .05
2 274.74 278.66 278.66
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28B. Fair values

The carrying amount of all financial assels and Tiabilitics (except for those instruments carried at fair value) uppearing in the Financial Statements is reasonable approximation of fair values,

Fair value

As at As at As at
o Mareh 31,2020 March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
Other Financiat liabilities at FVTPL
Derivative designated as hedge (previous yeur not designaled 392 3.92
as hedee) - ==
Total ) - - 392

Assumption used in estimating the fair values

The fair value of the financial assets and habilities is included at Ihe amount at which the instiument could be exchanged in a current transaction betw

sale. The following methods and assumptions weie used 10 estimate the fair values

ccn willing partics, other than in a forced or liquidation

The Company enters into derlvative Tnaneid msuments with various counteriies, pri ipally financial institutions with invesiment grade credit ratiigs. Crss curmeney swaps are valued using valuation

techniques, which employs the use of ni ulyservable wpw
incorporate various inputs including the ol

currencies. interest rate curves and forveant o curves of the tnderlying commodity

29. Fair value hierarchy
The company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation lechniques:

Level | - Guoted prices (unadjusted) in aeio e markets for denucnl assets or Hnbilities.
Level 2 - lnputs other (lun quoted prices

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilites Hinn are not bascil o abservable market data (unolservable inputs).

The most freguently applicil valuation weelmiyques include forward pricing and swap models, using present value calealations, The models
it duality of commerparies, Torenuy exchange spot and forwind rates, yigll clirves of the respective currencies, currency hasis spreads between the respoctive

ielided within Level | it are uhservable for the wsseis o liabilities, either directly (i-e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e derived [rom prices).

The following table provides the fair value measnement hictaschy of the Company s asscts and liabilities. Quantilative disclosures fair valuc measurcment hicrarchy for assets and liabilitics as at March 3 1.

2021 and March 31, 2020:

E\tcol'\':\luuuu.n_ ~ Tatal (}un_r.uLl pri

netive markers ohservahle inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2)

et using

Signitieant
wnohservahle
inputs
(Level 33

Liabilities measured at fair value

Derivative designated as hedge Maich 31, 2021 . - -

Quantitative disclosures fair value measuwrement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2020:

Fair value r

ment using

Date of valuation il Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets observable inputs  unobservable
inputs
o _ =  (LevelD (Level 2) (Level 3)
Liabilities measured at fair value
Derivative not designated as hedge Mairch 31, 2020 3.92 - 3.92

There have been no transfers between Level |, Level 2 and Level 3 during the yeu
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30. Financial risk management abjectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilitics. other than derivatives, comprise loans, horrowings and  wade and other payables. The main purpose of lhese financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s
operations and to support its operations The Company’s principal financial asscts include loans, trade receivables, and cash and cash cquivalents that derive directly from its operations. The Company
also enters into derivative transactions

The Company is exposed 1 mirket 1 Credit ikl lguidite visk The Cotipnng’s sepor manugeinent oversees thie punagement of these risks. The Cuormpuny's finaneral risk tetivities are govemed
by approprinte palicies and proceduies aid that fimmeial vishs are ideitifiod. measured and pnaged in aceordance with the Company's policles and risk objectives. All denvative activities for risk
- experivive und supervisian, 1S thie Company's policy that no trading inderivativis for speenlative

Inanngemant pur poses ane carried vt by senion iy L
purpises may be wndermken; The Board of Directnrs reviews and werees policio (or mimaging cacli of these risks, which are summarized betow.

e b e Tave s uppropriate s

Murket gk is (e risk that the fiir value of futare cash flows of i Tinancial instruincit will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate 1isk.
currency risk and other price isk, such ety prive risk and commodity risk. Fitie il instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings. loans and derivative financial instruments.
The sensitiviey analysis in the followine cectivns relate 1o the position as at March 31, 1021 and as a March 31, 2020.

The sensitivity amlysis have been prepared on the bises Hiat e divount of et debt, e Tatio of tiked w (Toting interest rates of the debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in
foreign currencics are all constant and on the basis of hedge desigrations in place as at March 31, 2021 and a5 at March 31, 2020,
The analysis exclude the impact of mosements in pikel varnbles on the canying vilues of gratuny and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the nun-financial assets and liabilitics of

foreign operations

The sensitivity of the relevant profit o1 loss item is the ofTect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held as at March 31, 2021
and as at March 31, 2020.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the tait value or future cash flows ol a {inancial instrument will Nluctuate because of changes in markel interest rates The Company's exposure io the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily 10 the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floaling inlerest rates

Interest rate sensitivity
The following lable demonstrates the sensitiviy 10 a reasonably possible change in interest 1ates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. after the impact of hedge accounting. With all other
variables held constant, the Company’s prolit before tax is allected through the impact on floaling rate borrowings, as follows:

Financial year Currency Inepuase/Decrease in basis { Elfect on prolit before tax
g _peimt
INR -0.08
arch 31,2021 - —- — _—
Morch 31 INR - 0.08
INR (11.24)
March 31, 2020 — —— —
arch INTt — 5 = 0.28

The assumed movement in basis points loy the interestrate sensitivily analysis is based on the currently obser vable market envitonment.




Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency sensitivily

The following tables demonstrate the scnsilivity to a reasonal

changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. The

bly possible change in forcign exchange rates, with all oth
Company's exposure to foreign cunency changes for all other currencies is nol material

Finuneial Year

_E_Imgge in rate

Finunelal year C_Imqg_c_ inrate (Eleet on |;_u7i| before . A
March 31, 2021 I | -

GBP — - | S—— 0.01 |

_.5_"/.,_— o .I|&

Euro R 7 -0.06|

— _ 3% e 006 |

CHF _— L1/ ) -0.02
[ 1 ) I — 002

SGD — 1/ | — '0'.l_|
% = 011l

usD o 5% (0.19)

S 5%l 0.19

Fffect on [-_)mt before tax _J

March 31, 2020 - B —a
GBP R 5% (0.08)
. 5% - 0.08

Furo _ 5% __ _,_(0_)_OT
= 5% 0.04

CHF T (0.12)]
s% 0.12

SGD — — sl T o)
S0l o 0.13]

USD E— sl (1.851]
-5% 1 85

er variables held constant. The impact on thc Company’s profit before tax is duc to
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Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meel its obligations under a financial instrument o1 customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is mainly exposed to credit risk fiom its
operating activities (primarily trade reccivables and other financial assets) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and
other financial instruments,

Trade receivables- Customer credit 1isk is managed by the Company thiough credit approvals, cstablishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the
Company grants credit ferms in the noimal cowse of business

The Company's maximum exposure to credil risk for the components of the balunce sheet as al Maich 31, 2021 and as at March 31, 2020 is the carrying amounts as illustrated in note 11 except fou
derivative financial instruments. The Company’s maximum exposure relating to financial derivative instruments is noted in Note 30 and the liquidity table below.

Liquidity risk

The Company monilors its tisk of a shottage ol funds on a tegular basis. The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafts and bank loans. Approximately 40 % of the Company's debt will mature in less than one year at 40% bascd on the carrying valuc of bonowings reflected in the Financial Statements. The
Company assessed the concentration ol risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it 1o be low The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturing within
12 months can be rolled over with existing fenders

The table below summarizes the matuiity profile of the Company's linancial liabilities including lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021 based on contiactual undiscounted payments.

Ond d Less than 3 months _3tol2 months . 1to 5 years > 5 years Tatal

11.27 9.20 27.78 100.15 = 148.40

The table below summarizes the matunity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities including leasc liabilitics as at March 31,2020 based on contt actual undiscounted payments.

On demand _ Less thin 3 months | dw12 mnnl_hs___ ) 1 to 5 years > 5 years Tatal

24.66 193 22.16 42,71 4 9152

o
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31. Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s c: sued equity capital, and all other equity reserves atlributable to the equily holders. The primary objeclive of the

Company's capital management is to n

ital management, capital includes
ximize the sharcholder value

The Company manages ils capital stiucture and makes adjustments in light o changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To mainlain or adjust the capilal
structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to sharcholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ralio, which is net debt
divided by total capital plus net debt as detived below. The Company's strives to keep the gearing ratio below 75% annually

At March 31. 2021 Al March 31, 2020
Borrowings (including short term botrowings) | 3114 65.92
Net Debt (A) L ETRY _ 65.92
Capital Components
Equity [Note 9 and Note 10] (B) . 32907 368.87
Cupital and debt (A+B) L 7Y T 434.79
Gearing ratio (%) |A/(A+B)| 8.63% 15.16%

At March 31, 2021, the Company had available Rs. NIL (Maich 31, 2020: Rs. NIL crote) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities from term loan IV & V and Rs.88.73 crore (March 31, 2020:
Rs. 56.01 crores) from cash credit 1he diawals fiom cash credit facilities are linked to net working capital

In order to achieve this overall objective. the Company's capital management. amongst othier things, aits to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and
borrowings that define capital structuie icquitements. Bicaches in meeting the 1inancial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in
the financial covenants of any interest-beating loans and borrowing in the cunient year

No changes were made in the objecuves. pulicies or processes for managing capatat duving the year ended March 31, 2021 and during the year ended March 31, 2020

32. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The Company has certain dues (o supphers registered under Micio, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED Act’). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are
as follows:

o Pmicul'n‘_ ) As at March 31, | As at March 31,
) ) - L _ 2021 2020
Principdl gimoutit due Lo suppliers 5 ied under the MSMED Act and 1= id as at year end® 1.30 212
Intarest due to suppliers regrstered i e NMISMED Act and sainaining unpuid as ar year end — = =
Prneipil dimounts paid to supplivrs (. wler the ? | the appoiited diay duting the year =
bierest gaid, other than under Secion 16 of MSMED Act, (o = lunder the MSMED Act, heyund the appointed day during the Year -
Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSNED Act, 1o “uppl il under the MSNIED At el the appointed day duing the yeay
Inerest due and payable towards sugipliers cepiered under MSMED Act, for pusy menis alrily made - -
Further interest remaining due and iyl — = -
*Refer nole 12 and 13
33, Corporate Social Respansibiliny e
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

— — . March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020
Contribution 1o healthcare, cducation and other community development projecis 4.14 382
Totul _ 4.14 182
Aimount required to be spent undet Scetion 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 4.14 3.82
Amount spent during the year on:
(1) Construction / acquisition ol an mssel - -
{ii) On purposes other than {i) above — ] - - 4.14 382
34. Leascs

(i) Delhi Intemational Airport Limited ('DIALY) had entered into Operation, Management and Development Agreement (OMDA) Airports Authorily of India (‘AAI’), which gives DIAL
exclusive right to operate, maintain, develop, mademize and manage the Indua Gandhi Internitional Airport (IGIA), New Delhi (*Delhi Airport’) on a revenue sharing model for the period
mentioned in the said OMDA, [n the year 2010, Delhi Internavional Ajrport Limited {*DIAL ) has given license to the Company for running the Juty free operations at Delhi Airport on payments
of specified sum. The license fees for the duty fice outlets are based on highei of the revenue share amount and the Actual Monthly Guarantee (MMG) amount calculated in the manner set oul in
the License agrcements cnlered by the Company with DIAL

The Company has also entered into certaiin cancellable operating lease agreements mainly for office premises and warchouses. The Company has also entered into a non-cancellable agreement for
a warehouse in respect of which the Conmpany has given interest [ree secutity deposits of Rs 11,04 crores (As at March 31, 2020 Rs. 11.04 ciores)

(ii)  With effect from 1 April 2019, the Company has adopied Tnd AS 116, 'Leases’ and applied to all lease contracts existing on 1 April, 2019 using the moditied retrospective method and has
taken the cumulative adjustment to retained eanings, on the date of initial apphcation (1 April 2019). Right-of-use (ROU) assels at 1 April, 2019 tor lcases previously classificd as operating leases
were recognized and measured at an amount equal 1o lease liability (adjusted lor any related prepayments). The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to shont-term
lcases.

In 1espect of certain duty frec outlets where MMG aic not lixed throughout the ietm, the management has assessed that the payments do not fulfil the definition of Iease payments (i.c. not fixed or

in substance fixed and not variable pay ments hinked o an index) and thus are not ta be included in the lease payments for the purpose of compuling lease liability under Ind AS 116 and presenled
scparately in the Stalement of Profit and Loss as concession [ces
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Following arc (he changes in the canying vadue of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2021:

Right of usc assets

Following are the changes in the carrying value ol right of use assets :

Right of use assets - -

Asat As at
Pinticatans Mareh 31, | March 31,
2021 2020
Openimg Balance - 2041 27.6%
Additions 90.64 =
Deletions - -
Depreciation - 13.21 7.28
Closing Balance - 97.84 20.41
The following 15 the mevement in Jewie lililines o
As at Asat
Pavtivalurs March 31, March 31,
S 2021 2020

Lease Liability
Opening Balance 22.76 26.56
Addition 86.94 -
Finance cost 381 213
Lease liability written off {633) (1.17)
Payment of lease liabilities (6.50) (6.96)
Forcign exchange loss —. — (0.80)] 2.20
Closing Balance 99.88 22.76

In view of the Covid-19 outbreak relermed 10 in Note 2.4, DIAL on Maich 30. 2020 decided to suspend the levy and payment of MMG amount for the period from March 1, 2020 till March 31,
2021 under the License Agreement, accurdingly the Company has ieassessed the lease liability and written back lease liability ot Rs 6.63 Crorcs (Prcvious year Rs. 1.17 Crores)

The following is the hreak-up of vurcent anid nop-coreent Tease Habilitios -

As at As at
Piticndars March 31, March 31,
= — R E— 1 B— — 1) -
Non - current R0.69 16.36
Current — o — = 919l 640
Tuotal ) e v e e e o o e U988 - 22,76

Maturity profile of lease liability
The table below summarizes the matnty profile ol the Company’s lease liabihtics based on contiaciual undiscounted payments.

R R .\\Tlhin Alter ane year bue More than ;vc_
Year ended March 31, 2021 not more than five ’ Total
one year - years
. o Tl years -
Lense liahilities ) 260 100 15 o 126,26
o T T . | Ader one yc;_hu( T -
Witk - fore tham five
Yenr ended March 31, 2020 ot more than five More i five Total
one year e yeats
Lease hinbilines ) - _.. _"E _ ~ as . _" = 25.60

The Company does not face a signilicant tiquidity risk with regard 1o its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficicnt 1o mect the obligations iclated to leasc liabilitics as and when they fall
due.

Following amount has been recognized in statement ot prufit and loss

For the year For the year

o vicnlars ended March ended
31, 2021 March 31,

I B | ' 2020
Deprecistion/ amarization enriphi 1o use assal 1321 728
Intercst on tease liability KR 2.13
Fureign exchange (gain) / loss (0 80) 2.20
Lease fiability writlen oft ~ S R I (R X)) (117
Total amount recognized in statement of profit and loss o . 98y 10.44

35. Segment Reporting
Factors used to identify the entities segment including the basis of organization

Operating segiments are reported in o minner consistent with the internal 1¢porting provided to the Chicf Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM s considered to be the Board of
Directors who makes strategic decisions and is 1esponsible for allocating 1esources and assessing performance of the operating segmenls.

The principal activity of the company is sale of duty free praducts including liquor, confectionery, obacen, perfume and cosmetics at Terminal 3 (Indira Gandhi International Airport) in Delhi .
Henee, there is only one reportable segmient. As the Company’s business activities falls within a single operating segment viz. “sale of traded goods” and is a single geographical segment, the
disclosure requirements of Ind AS- 108 * Scement Reporting™ are not applicable

No single customer has accounled for moie than 10% of the total revenue
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Note 36 Disclosures under Accounting Standards (contd.)

Note

Particulars

36 |Reluted party transactions

36.a |List of reluted partics and natore of relativnship with whom transactivns

(1} Entities with joint control over the ieporting entity

“Transaction have taken place with Act Rinta International cpt (Holding coinp

{11} Entities in which companics covered in (i) excrcise significant influence

(i1} Key Management Personnel (KMP)

{iv] Entities in which persons covercd above can excercise significant
miluence

Deseription of relationship Bl

Tuive taken plaee du
nies ol r

ted purties

the viear,

el International Aimpo
Yo Limited*
CiRTR Aitports Limuted

uny of Yalorvin Limited)

Delti Airport Parking Se

i1 Limited (DIAL)

rvices Private Limited

G IR Vaalakshii Foundation

Celehy Delhi Careo Management (I) Private Limiled

WAISL Led (Fformerly known as Wipro Airport IT Services Lid)
Trivel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited

LihiK Airpotl Developers Limited
LI Sports Private Limiled

Mr R S S L N RBhaskaiudu (Independent Director)
My, Kameshwani Vissa (Independent  Director)
M. Pawan Kumar Malhotra (Independent Director) (w.e.f. 24th Jun, 2018)

Nate = The above list of rela

36.b

ctinns angd ba

con tilstan

Betails of related purty

Mgy

Farticulars o witli joing Entities in which Key Management Entities in which Total
control over the companices covered in | Personnel (KNP) | persons covered in (i)
reporiing entiry (i) above exercise to (iii) above can
significant influcnce exerelse significant
influence
Concession Fee (including lease pay ment)#
- Delhi [nternational Airport Liniited 10207 102.07
(532 65) (532.65)
Marketing lee
- Delhi Intemational Airpon Lunned 304 323
[T (16.80)
Adrport service charges
Delhi Internalional Airporl [ innked 784 7.84
(7 36) (7.56)
Ajfrport entry pass charges
- Delhi Intemational Airport Linutcu 002 0.02
12y (0.02)
Elvetricity & Water charges
- Delhi Intcrnational Airport Limited 454 4.54
t4.19) (4.19)
Repairs & maintenance charges - uthers
= Delhi International Airpont Limited 040 0.40
i0.39) (0.39)
Rent
- Delhi International Airport Limited 260 2.60
(2.46) (2.46)
Murketing .
- Delhi International Airport Limited 0L {-)
Deputed staff cost
- Delhi Intemational Airpon Limited 060 0.60
(0.57) (0.57)
Warchouse charges
- Delhi Airport Parking Scivices uvate Limited 0.28 0.28
_ (0.44) (0.44)

o
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Particulars

Terminal, Storage and Processing (TSP) charges
~Celebi Delhi Cargo Management (1) Private Limited
Computer Repair and Maintenance

June 19 onlv)

Project Cost
- GMR Aimor Developers Limited

Emunlovee Benefits
Triuvel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited

CSR Donation

(MR Varalakshmi Foundation

Professional Fees *
- GMR Airmorts Limited (GAL)

- Aer Rianta Intcrnalional et (AR

™

-WAISL Lid (formerly known as Wipro Airport IT Services Ltd up to 26,

Entitics with joint
control over the
reporting entity

Entlties in which Kcy Management Entitics in which Total
companies covered in | Personnel (KMP) | persons covered in (i)
() above exercise to (iii) above can
significant influence exercise significant
influence
0.11 0.1
(0.66) (0.66)
(0.22) (0.22)
(0.14) (0.14)
(0.00) 0.00
2.77 2.77
(2.58) (2.58)
(8.85)
(4.43)
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Particulars

Entitics with Joint
control over (he
reporting cntity

Project Management Consultancy charges
- GMR Aimport Devclopers Limited

Final dividend paid for the FY 2018-19
- Delhi Inlcmational Airpoit Limited

- GMR Airports Limited

- Yalorvin Limiled

Interim dividend paid
- Delhi International Airport Limited

- Yalorvin Limiled
- GMR Aimorts Limited

Reimbursement paid on expenses incurred on our hehalf
- Yalorvin Limited

- GMR Aimports Limited

Retmbursement received ol expenses incurred on their behall
- Yalorvin Limited

- Delhi Intemational Anpout Linuted
- GMR Airporis Limited

- GMR Infrastructure Limited
Directors sitting fees

-R S S L N Bhaskarudu

- Kameshwari Vissa

- Pawan Kumar Malhotra

(798)
(272)

(529)

(3593
(2331}

(12 26)

)M
[ LR
(1 22y

0 3as
[{tR}

Entities in which
companies covered in
(i) above exercise
significant influence

Key Management
Personnel (KMP)

Entities in which
persons covered in (i)
to (1il) above can
exercise significant
influence

Total

(1.00)

006
(0.06)

005
(0.04)

0.06

0.05)]

(1.00)
(7.98)
(2.72)

(5.29)

(35.93)

(238D

(12.26)

0.7
(0.0

0.90
(1.00)

(11.22)

0.35
(0.19)

035
-)
0.06
(0.06)

0.05
(0.04)

0.06
(0.05)
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Particulars

Bl ing ot ut Muroh 31, 2021 (Asat Mareh 31, 2020)
Payables

- Delhi International Airport Limited

- Yalorvin Limited

- Aer Rianta Inicmational cpt

- GMR Sports Private Limited

-Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Privaie Limited

-GMR Airporis Limiled

.Reccivablcs
Celebi Delhi Carggo Manatement (1) Private Limited

- Yalorvin Limited

- Delhi International Aiiport Limiied

- GMR Aimoris Limited

- GMR [nfrastructure Limited

*- Delhi Airport Parking Senvices Private Limited

Security deposits given
- Dclhi Intemational Airpoit Limited **
- Delhi Aimport Parking Services Piivate Limited

Entities with joint i
control over the
reporting entity

19 0S8
{17.44)

097
(097)

(3.36)

(8.85)

023
©31)

(36.04)]

035
-)

159 65
(14310

Lntitics in which Key Manugcmcﬁ Entitics in which Total
companies covered in | Personnel (KMP) | persons covered in (i)
(i) above exercise to (iff) above can
significant influence exercise significant
influence
19.05
(17.44)
097
(0.97)
(3.36)
(0.00) (0.00)
{0.00) (0.00)
(8.85)
0.10 0.10
(0.06) (0.06)
023
031
(36.64)
0.35
Q]
035
<)
N0y -
159.65
(143.10)
014 0.14
(0.14) (0.14)

# Concession [ces is net of lease payment amounting Rs | 47 crores (Pievious yecar Rs 6 96 umcjun account of IND AS 116,
* Due to COVID pandemic, the 1evenue and profitability of the Company 1educed significantly. At the 1equest of the Company, GAL and ARI gave waiver from the chargeability of the Strategic

and Technicat fees for the FY 2020-21

** Security Deposit outstanding as disclosed above is the carrying amount in books al amoilised cost. Total security deposit given as at year ended March 31, 2021 is Rs. 23747 Crores (March

31, 2020: Rs. 237.47 Croies)
Note

1. The sales/ provision of services 10 and purchase/provision of services fom related parties are made on tenns equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances as

al the year are unsecured and interest free and settlement oceurs in cish

2. No amounl has heen written ot ‘provided for or wiitten back in respeet o amount reeeivable ftom or payable to the related partics

(M




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : U52599DL2609PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the ycur ended Mareh 31, 2021

37. Transfer Pricing

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Income-tax Act,
1961, Since the law requires existence of such infonmation and documentation to be conlemporancous in nature, the Company is in the process of updating the documentation for transactions
entered into with the holding company and other associaled enterprises duting the [inancial ycar and expeels such records to be in existence latest by the duc dalc as required under that law. The
management is of the opinion that its transactions are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of fax
expense and that of provision fa taxation

38. Estimation of uncertainties relating to (he global health pandemic from COVID-19 (COVID-19):

With the rapid development of the COVID-1Y outbreak, many countries have 1equired entitics to limit or suspend business operations and implemented travel restrictions and quaranline
measures. As a quarantine measuic, nationwide lockdown was announced in India from March 25, 2020 which was gradually released from May 25, 2020, although international travel continucs
to be severely disrupted with international flights being permilted only on a case-to-case basis. This has significantly impacted the operations of the Company during the lockdown and thereafter.

The Company has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position, including making altemate amangements for funding from its bankers etc. for the next one year, and of the recoverability of
carrying values of its assets as at March 31. 2021 and has concluded that there are no material adjustments required in the Financial Statements and will be able to mect all of its obligations as
well as recover the carrying amount of ils assets as on March 31, 2021

In developing the assumptions relating 1o (he possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Management has considered the impact from a
prolonged lock-down situation; wanel restrictions being continued to be imposed by [ndia and other countries even after lifting of the lockdown, customers postponing their discretionary
spending, continued restiictions on the number of intemational flights, internal and external information available up to the date of approval of these Financial Statements. However, the impact of
the COVID(9 pandemic on the business will depend on Tuture developments that cannot be reliably piedicted: The impact of the COVIDI9 pandemic might be different from that estimated as al
the date of approval of thesc Financial Statements and the Company will closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions

39.The Code on Social Security 2020 (*Code’) relating to employec benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has
been published in the Gazeu ol India. However, the date on which the Code will come into et has nol been notificd. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into
effect and will record any related umpact in the period the Code becomes effective

40. The Company's operations [or Ihe year ended March 31, 2021 have been adversely impacted by the outbreak of COVID 19 pandemic fiom March 2020 owing to lockdowns and travel related
restrictions announced by the Govermment of India (also refer note 38). Accordingly figures for the curient year are not comparable with those for the previous year.

‘ ﬁ For and on hebalf of the Board of Directors of

Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

\
Director Dire
DIN DIN
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delln
Dale: May 06, 2021 Dale: May 06, 2021

“higl Financial officer
["ace® New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: May 06, 2021 Date: May 06, 2021
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